
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 

 

January 18, 2022 – 5:00 PM 

Effingham County Administration Complex 
Meeting Chambers 

804 South Laurel Street, Springfield GA 31329 
 

The Georgia Conflict of Interest in Zoning Action Statue (O.C.G.A. §§ 36-67A-1 et seq.) requires disclosure of certain 
campaign contributions made by applicants for rezoning actions and by opponents of rezoning application.  A rezoning 
applicant or opponent of a rezoning application must disclose contributions or gifts which in aggregate total $250.00 or 
more if made within the last two years to a current member of Effingham County Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, 
or other Effingham County official who will consider the application.  The campaign contribution disclosure requirement 
applies to an opponent of a rezoning application who publishes his or her opposition by appearance before the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners or by any other oral or written communication to a member or members of the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners.  Disclosure must be reported to the Board of Commissioners by applicants within ten 
(10) days after the rezoning application is filed and by opponents at least five (5) days prior to the first hearing by the 
Planning Board.  Any person knowing failing to comply with these requirements shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
“Individuals with disabilities who require special needs to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities should contact the County Clerk at 912-754-2123 
promptly to afford the County time to create reasonable accommodations for those persons.” 

**PLEASE TURN OFF YOUR CELL PHONE 
 

Agenda 

Virtual Meeting Information: 

Zoom link: https://zoom.us/j/98715219287?pwd=ZHBJOFRmVXJZak0vakJVbXN6L3lTZz09 

Phone Number: 1-929-436-2866 

Meeting ID: 987 1521 9287 

Access Code: 901128 
 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Invocation 

IV. Pledge to the American Flag 

V. Agenda Approval - Consideration of a resolution to approve the agenda. 

VI. Minutes 

Consideration to approve the January 4, 2022 commission meeting minutes 

VII. Public Comments - Agenda Items ONLY 

VIII. Correspondence - Documents from this meeting are located in the Clerk's Office and on the 
Board of Commissioner's website. 

IX. Presentation 

1. Recognition of Vicki Dunn for 5 years of service as Director of Human Resources 

 

1



 

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – January 18, 2022 

 

 

X. Consent Agenda 

1. [2022-048 Form]  

Consideration to approve the ACCG Defined Contribution Authorized Distribution 
forms  

2. [2022-049 Form]  

Consideration to approve an update  of the ACCG Schedule F authorization to make 
changes to the Defined Contribution Plans 

3. [2022-050 Form]  

Consideration to approve an update of the ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web 
Access  

4. [2022-051 MOU]  

Consideration to approve renewal of the Memorandum Of Understanding with 
Effingham County United Methodist Campground for use as a critical workforce shelter 
and/or post event shelter. (Critical Workforce Shelter Initiative) 

XI. Old Business 

1. [2022-047 2nd Reading]  

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Marchese 
Construction, LLC as Agent for Toshiyuki Hirata for a Variance located at GA 
Highway 21 to reduce the minimum number of parking spots required for a 
commercial development, zoned B-3. Map# 465N Parcel # 2 

XII. New Business 

1. [2022-052 Refund] Jennifer Keyes  

Consideration to approve a Tax Refund Request by Rex Inman Sr. for a property located 
at 2761 Noel C. Conaway Road Map# 418 Parcel# 28A 

2. [2022-053 Agreement] Sarah Mausolf 

Consideration to approve the extension of an Agreement with USI 
Brokerage/Consulting for two (2) additional years. 

3. [2022-054 Resolution] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-004 to amend the fiscal year 2021-2022 
Budget 

4. [2022-055 Grant] Clint Hodges  

Consideration to approve to accept a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Award from 
GEMA/FEMA to update the Effingham County Joint Hazard Mitigation Plan  

5. [2022-056 Quote] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve a Quote from SealMaster for the purchase of an Aggregate 
Chip Spreader and Spray Bar for the Public Works Department 

2



 

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – January 18, 2022 

 

6. [2022-057 Change Order]  

Consideration to approve Change Order #1 for Marsh Construction for  civil/site work 
of Fire Station #15 located on Hodgeville Road 

7. [2022-058 Change Order] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve Change Order# 1 for Savannah Construction and 
Preservation, LLC pertaining to the construction of Fire Station #15 located on 
Hodgeville Road 

8. [2022-059 Plat/Deed] Teresa Concannon 

Consideration to approve a Warranty Deed to accept the infrastructure and Final Plat 
for Rain Dance subdivision Phase 2 located off of Ebenezer Road, consisting of 40 lots 
Map# 445 Parcel# 26 in the Fourth District 

9. [2022-060 Plat/Deed] Teresa Concannon  

Consideration to approve  a Warranty Deed to accept the infrastructure and a Final Plat 
for Emerald Plantation, Phase 3 located off of Bluejay Road, consisting of 16 lots Map# 
350 Parcel# 16 in the Second District 

10. [2022-061 Deed/Plat] Teresa Concannon 

Consideration to approve a Warranty Deed to accept the infrastructure and Final Plat 
for Buckingham Plantation Phase 2B. located off of Noel C. Conaway Road consisting of 
51 lots Map# 375 Parcel# 51 in the First District 

11. [2022-062 Plat] Teresa Concannon 

Consideration to approve a revised Final Plat for Goshen Hills Farms located off of 
Goshen Road Map#  Parcel# in the Second District 

12. [2022-063 Task Order] Eric Larson 

Consideration to approve a Task Order to provide consultant services to collect data on 
tide cycles along the Ogeechee Run and Little Ogeechee River to assist GA-EPD with the 
Waste Load Allocation (WLA) determination of the Ogeechee Run 

13. [2022-064 Change Order] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve ratification of Change Order# 3 for APAC-Atlantic Inc. related 
to resurfacing for the Blue Jay/McCall intersection improvements 

14. [2022-065 Resolution] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-005 declaring the Special Purpose Local 
Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) 2021 election results  

15. [2022-066 Resolution/Public Hearing] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-006 related to redistricting for the Board of 
Commissioners and the Board of Education based on the 2020 United States Census 

XIII. Reports from Commissioners & Administrative Staff 

XIV. Executive Session - Discussion of Personnel, Property and Pending Litigation 

XV. Adjournment 

3



Staff Report 
 
Subject:  Signatures for Defined Contribution Authorized Distribution Form 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Assistant Human Resources Director 
Department:  Human Resources 
Meeting Date:  January 18, 2022 
Item Description: Approval of Defined Contribution Authorized Distribution Form 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Defined Contribution Authorized Distribution Singer 
Form. This is a new form required by ACCG in order to make distribution of 
terminating/resigning/retiring employees' contributions. This will authorize the County 
Manager, County Clerk and the Human Resources Director to sign the distribution forms 
on behalf of the County. 
 
Executive Summary 
This form authorizes the County Manager, County Clerk and Human Resources Director 
to sign account action forms for the resigned/terminated employees. Previously this 
authorization was part of the Schedule F but has been removed from Schedule F and 
requires a separate form to be used to authorize distributions from the Defined 
Contribution Plan.   
 
Background 

 ACCG has revised the forms authorizing changes to the Defined Contribution Plan. 
The new Defined Contribution Distribution Signer Form will authorize the County 
Manager, County Clerk and Human Resources Director to sign the forms 
authorizing distribution of funds for terminated/resigning/retiring employees. 

 
Alternatives 
1.  Recommend approval of Defined Contribution Authorized Distribution Signer Form for 
the Defined Contribution Plans. 
 
Other Alternatives: 
None 
 
Department Review:  County Manager  
 
Funding Source:  No impact on funding. 
 
Attachments:  ACCG Defined Contribution Authorized Distribution Signer Form 

4

Item X. 1.



ACCG Retirement Services requires individuals to be designated to sign off on participant 
distribution/retirement forms as an authorized signer. Distribution & Retirement requests cannot be 
processed unless one of the listed individuals have signed the participants form.  

Effective ___________________, 2022, the Employer hereby designates the persons listed below as 
the individuals who may sign distribution forms as an authorized signer.  

PLEASE ENTER THE NAME OF THE INDIVIDUAL(S) WHO SHOULD BE DESIGNATED AS AN AUTHORIZED 
SIGNER.

 

ACCG may rely upon each designation set forth above until such future date as the Employer delivers 
written notice of the termination of authority of a designated individual. This form must be authorized 
here by the Jurisdiction Manager, Administrator, Commissioner, or Chairman. 

Jurisdiction Management Approval 

Authorized By Signature : __________________________
 physical signature required

Print Name & Title: _____________________________ 

Date: 

1) Name: _____________________________________

Title: ______________________________________

Email Address: _____________________________

Signature:________________________________

3) Name: ____________________________________

Title: _____________________________________

Email Address: _____________________________

Signature:________________________________

2) Name: _____________________________________

Title: ______________________________________

Email Address: ______________________________

Signature:________________________________

4) Name: _____________________________________

Title: ______________________________________

Email Address: ______________________________

Signature:________________________________

**Please upload this form to the ACCG Secure Website to the “Completed Forms” folder**

ACCG Retirement Services 
191 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 700, Atlanta, Georgia  30303 

•  
Fax  (770) 563-9356  Phone (770) 952-5225 or (800) 736-7166 

e-mail: ClientServices@accg.org

DC   DB DC  DB

DC   DB DC  DB

DC & DB Distribution/Retirement Authorized Signer Form 
Jurisdiction Name: ________________________

✔✔

✔ ✔

Effingham County

5

Item X. 1.



Staff Report 
 
Subject:  Signatures for Schedule F Authorizing Changes to ACCG Defined Contribution 
Program 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Assistant Human Resources Director 
Department:  Human Resources 
Meeting Date:  January 18, 2022 
Item Description: Approval of Updating ACCG Schedule F, Authorization to Take Action 
on the Defined Contribution Program 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of amendment to ACCG Schedule F, Authorization to Take 
Action on the Defined Contribution Program. This amendment will remove the statement 
authorizing the County Manager, County Clerk and Human Resources Director the 
authority to sign distribution paperwork for terminating/resigning/retiring employees. 
 
Executive Summary 
This amendment deletes the statement authorizing the County Manager, County Clerk 
and Human Resources Director to sign account action forms for the resigned/terminated 
employees.   
 
Background 

 ACCG has revised the forms authorizing changes to the Defined Contribution Plan. 
The new Schedule F will authorize the Board of Commissioners to make changes 
to the Defined Contribution Plan. The change also removes the statement allowing 
the County Manager, County Clerk and Human Resources Director to sign the 
forms authorizing distribution of funds for terminated/resigning/retiring employees. 

 
Alternatives 
1.  Recommend approval of update to ACCG Schedule F for the Defined Contribution 
Plans. 
 
Other Alternatives: 
None 
 
Department Review:  County Manager  
 
Funding Source:  No impact on funding. 
 
Attachments:  ACCG Form Schedule F to Defined Contribution Plans. 

6

Item X. 2.



[  ] [  ] [  ] [  ] 

 

 

 

 
JURISDICTION NAME: 

SCHEDULE “F” 

Effingham County 
 

DC Program ✔ 401(a) Plan ✔ 457(b) Plan Senior Management 401(a) Plan 

 

Effective February 1 
 

, 2022, the Employer hereby designates the persons listed below as 

the individuals who may provide direction upon which ACCG may take action for the Plan(s). Only 

one such individual need provide any direction. The signature of each designated individual is also set 

forth below and certified to be such. The Employer hereby certifies that it has the authority to designate 

these individuals in accordance with any documents or laws which govern the operation and 

administration of the Plan(s). 

1) Name:                       Reginald              Loper   

Title:        Commissioner,     District     4   

Email Address: comm.rsloper.dist4@gmail.com 
 

Signature:    

2) Name:                       Jamie              DeLoach   

Title:        Commissioner,     District     3   

Email Address: jdeloachdistrict3@gmail.com    
 

Signature:    

3) Name:                          Forrest                Floyd   

Title:        Commissioner,     District     1   

Email Address: ffloyd@effinghamcounty.org     
 

Signature:    
 

 
 

ACCG may rely upon each designation set forth above until such future date as the Employer delivers 

written notice of the termination of authority of a designated individual. 
 

JURISDICTION MANAGEMENT APPROVAL 

 
 

By:    
 

Title: Chairman   
 

Date:   

7

Item X. 2.

mailto:comm.rsloper.dist4@gmail.com
mailto:jdeloachdistrict3@gmail.com
mailto:ffloyd@effinghamcounty.org


[  ] [  ] [  ] [  ] 

   

 

 

 

 
JURISDICTION NAME: 

SCHEDULE “F” 

Effingham County 
 

DC Program ✔ 401(a) Plan ✔ 457(b) Plan Senior Management 401(a) Plan 

 

Effective February 1 
 

, 2022, the Employer hereby designates the persons listed below as 

the individuals who may provide direction upon which ACCG may take action for the Plan(s). Only 

one such individual need provide any direction. The signature of each designated individual is also set 

forth below and certified to be such. The Employer hereby certifies that it has the authority to designate 

these individuals in accordance with any documents or laws which govern the operation and 

administration of the Plan(s). 

1) Name: Wesley Corbitt   

Title: 
Chairman, Effingham County Board of Commissioners 

Email Address: wcorbitt@effinghamcounty.org 

Signature:    

2) Name:                       Roger              Burdette   

Title:        Commissioner,     District     2   

Email Address: burdettedistrict2@gmail.com    
 

Signature:    

3) Name:               N.         Phillip         Kieffer   

Title:        Commissioner,     District     5   

Email Address: philkiefferdistrict5@gmail.com 
 

Signature:    
 

 
 

ACCG may rely upon each designation set forth above until such future date as the Employer delivers 

written notice of the termination of authority of a designated individual. 
 

JURISDICTION MANAGEMENT APPROVAL 

 
 

By:    
 

Title: Chairman   
 

Date:   

8

Item X. 2.

mailto:wcorbitt@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:burdettedistrict2@gmail.com
mailto:philkiefferdistrict5@gmail.com


Staff Report 
 
Subject: Update to ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Assistant Human Resources Director 
Department:  Human Resources 
Meeting Date:  January 18, 2022 
Item Description: Approval to Update ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access  
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval to Update ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access. 
This request updates the employees authorized access to the Secure Web and 
removes former employees.  This website allows confidential information to be 
uploaded through a secure website when changes/updates are needed for employees.  
 
Executive Summary 
Authorizes specific individuals to have access to the ACCG Retirement Services Secure 
Website when making changes/updates to employee’s records. It also removes  
employees that are no longer with us. 
  
Background 

 When employees need to make changes to the 457(b) or 401(a) accounts we are 
able to upload the required forms through a secure website so that confidential 
information is not compromised.  
 

 
Alternatives 
1.  Recommend approval of the update to ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web 
Access 
 
Other Alternatives: 
None 
 
Department Review:  County Manager  
 
Funding Source:  No impact on funding. 
 
Attachments:  ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access Change Form 

9

Item X. 3.



Effingham County ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access Change Form

Effective February 1, 2022

Add Users to Payroll Folder Permissions Notifications

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No

Mark Barnes Finance Director mbarnes@effinghamcounty.org X X

Kerrie Carroll Accountant kcarroll@effinghamcounty.org X X

Sarah Mausolf HR Director smausolf@effinghamcounty.org X X

Jasmine Kirkland Asst Director of HR jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org X X

Krystle McDonald HR Generalist kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org X X

Add Users to Census Folder

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No

Sarah Mausolf HR Director smausolf@effinghamcounty.org X X

Jasmine Kirkland Asst Director of HR jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org X X

Krystle McDonald HR Generalist kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org X X

Add Users to Completed Forms  Folder

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No

Sarah Mausolf HR Director smausolf@effinghamcounty.org X X

Jasmine Kirkland Asst Director of HR jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org X X

Krystle McDonald HR Generalist kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org X X

Survira Parker HR Admin Asst sparker@effinghamcounty.org X X

Add Users to Hardships Folder

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No

Sarah Mausolf HR Director smausolf@effinghamcounty.org X X

Jasmine Kirkland Asst Director of HR jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org X X

Krystle McDonald HR Generalist kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org X X

Add Users to Returned Forms Folder

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No

Sarah Mausolf HR Director smausolf@effinghamcounty.org X X

Jasmine Kirkland Asst Director of HR jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org X X

Krystle McDonald HR Generalist kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org X X

10

Item X. 3.

mailto:mbarnes@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:kcarroll@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:smausolf@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:smausolf@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:smausolf@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:sparker@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:smausolf@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:smausolf@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:jkirkland@effinghamcounty.org
mailto:kmcdonald@effinghamcounty.org


ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access Change Form 
Jurisdiction Name:___________________________ 

This form is to be used if a user needs to be disabled and a new user needs to be added.  Please complete the appropriate boxes that 
the changes need to be applied to.  All current users will remain the same at this time. 

Provide the name and email address for each employee who should have access to the ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web, the permissions they should have, 
as well as whether or not they should receive email notifications for activity under each of the folders to which they should have access.  See the descriptions of 
the available folders and the permission levels below for more information.  Please use additional pages as needed. 

Disable Users Listed 

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address 

Add Users to Payroll Folder 
Permissions Notifications 

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No 
 Example:  Jane Doe Finance Director JaneDoe@county.com X X 

Add Users to Census Folder - DB Only 
Permissions Notifications 

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No 

Add Users to Completed Forms Folder 
Permissions Notifications 

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No 

Effingham County

Vicki Dunn HR Director vdunn@effinghamcounty.org
Christy Carpenter Finance Director ccarpenter@effinghamcounty.org

See Attached

See Attached

See Attached

11

Item X. 3.



ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access Change Form 
 Jurisdiction Name:___________________________ 

Add Users to Hardships Folder- DC Only 
Permissions Notifications 

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No 

Add Users to ACCG Returned Forms Folder 
Permissions Notifications 

Employee Name Job Title Employee E-Mail Address Read Only All Yes No 

FOLDER DESCRIPTIONS: 
• Payroll – use to submit your payroll information related to your 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan, 457 Deferred Compensation Plan, and Defined Benefit Plan

on a per pay period basis.
• Census – use to receive and submit your annual census files, and other information related to the DB census, for your Defined Benefit Plan, if

applicable.
• Completed Forms – use to submit any completed forms that may contain sensitive, personal information (e.g. Enrollment Forms, Beneficiary

Forms, DB Calculation Request, Notice of Retirement, Data Change Request, 401(a) / 457(b) Distributions, etc.).

• Hardships – If applicable, ACCG Retirement Services will use this folder to send Hardship Notifications to you to let you know when to suspend and reactivate
contributions for employees who have taken 457(b) Unforeseeable Emergency (Hardship) Distributions.

• ACCG Returned Forms- this folder will be used to return forms that you have requested such as calculation requests, death packages, and
forms that are incomplete and need to be completed by the Jurisdiction and or Participant.

PERMISSIONS LEVELS: 

Print Name:_________________________________    Signature: ____________________________________  Date: _____________________ 

Title: ______________________________________  

• Read only – allows the employee to view and download files from the Secure Website.

• All – same permissions as read only, plus allows the employee to upload files to the Secure Website. 

Jurisdiction Management Approval 

See Attached

See Attached

Wesley Corbitt
Chairman

Effingham County

12

Item X. 3.



Staff Report 

 
Subject: MOU with Effingham County United Methodist Campground for use as a 

critical workforce shelter and/or post event shelter. (Critical Workforce Shelter Initiative) 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent; Clint Hodges EEMA Director 

Department: EEMA 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 

Item Description: Consideration to renew the Memorandum of Understanding with 

Effingham County United Methodist Campground for use as a critical workforce shelter 

and/or post event shelter (Critical Workforce Shelter Initiative) 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends renewal of the MOU with Effingham 

County United Methodist Campground 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The MOU outlines the obligations for both Effingham County and the Effingham 

County United Methodist Campground. 

 The critical workforce shelter initiative supports all hazards emergency 

management missions for Effingham County and provides support for the first 

responders families during a disaster. 

 The County can terminate the MOU with 30 days written notice. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Board approval to allow the Memorandum of Understanding with Effingham County 

United Methodist Campground for use as a critical workforce shelter and/or post event 

shelter to automatically renew for the period February 3, 2022 until February 3, 2023. 

2. Cancel the Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

 

Other Alternatives: 2 

 

Department Review: EEMA 

 

Funding Source: No funding is required 

 

Attachments: Memorandum of Understanding with Effingham County United Methodist 

Campground 

 

 

13

Item X. 4.



14

Item X. 4.

fcharleton
Sticky Note
Auto renew annually.



15

Item X. 4.



16

Item X. 4.



17

Item X. 4.



Staff Report 

Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning & Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 
Item Description: Marchese Construction, LLC as Agent for Toshiyuki Hirata requests a variance to 
reduce the minimum number of parking spots required for a commercial development. Located on GA 
Highway 21, zoned B-3. Map# 465N Parcel # 2 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request for a variance to reduce the 
minimum number of parking spots required for a commercial development. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 Pursuant to Appendix C-Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Planning Board, Section 7.1.8, variances may only 

be granted if the following findings are made: 

That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, narrowness, or 

shallowness, of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the 

particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not to circumstances 

or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district 

in which the property is located; and  

That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that the property 

can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, and that the authorization 

of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.  

 The proposed restaurant location is a 1.03-acre parcel. The proposed structure consists of a restaurant 

and three retail units. Required parking for the proposed development is at least 48 spaces. 

 The applicant proposes 32 parking spaces and a drive through lane for the restaurant. A smaller building 

footprint would require fewer spaces and allow more space to meet parking space requirements. 

 The retail portion of the building is 5,125 sf, which requires 17 spaces. The restaurant is 3,225 sf. 78 seats 

are proposed, which requires 31 spaces + 1 space per 3 employees. 

 In neighboring jurisdictions, the parking requirement for retail is 1 space per 200 – 250 sf, which is more 

restrictive than Effingham County. Restaurant parking requirements are tied to building size or number of 

seats. Effingham County’s requirements are in line with Savannah, Liberty County, and Bulloch County. 

 At the December 20 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion to approve the request for a 

variance to reduce the minimum number of parking spots required for a commercial development. 

 The motion was seconded by Michael Larson, and carried unanimously. 

 At the January 4, 2022 meeting, the Board of Commissioners approved a first reading, with te following 

condition: 

1. Applicant shall provide a plan showing 36 parking spaces. 

Alternatives  
1. Approve request for a variance to reduce the minimum number of required parking spots required for a 
commercial development, with the following condition: 

1. Applicant shall provide a plan showing 36 parking spaces. 

2. Deny the request for a variance to reduce the minimum number of required parking spots required for a 
commercial development 
 
 Recommended Alternative:  2   Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment  

18

Item XI. 1.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

465N-2 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

465N-2 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, MARCHESE CONSTRUCTION, LLC as agent for TOSHIYUKI HIRATA has filed an application for a 

variance, to reduce the required number of parking spaces for a restaurant and retail development; map and parcel number 465N-2, 

located in the 5th commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on January 4, 2021 and notice of said hearing having been published in the Effingham 

County Herald on December 15, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on December 1, 2021; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT a variance to reduce the required number of parking spaces for a restaurant and retail 

development; map and parcel number 465N-2, located in the 5th commissioner district, is approved with the following condition: 

1. Applicant shall provide a plan showing 36 parking spaces. 

 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

19

Item XI. 1.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:   Tax Refund Request 

Author:   Jennifer Keyes 

Department:  Tax Assessor  

Meeting Date:  January 18, 2021 

Item Description:  Tax refund request for parcel 418-28A Rex Inman Sr.  

 

Summary Recommendation: 

Mr. Inman is asking to have the square footage corrected on his home. At the time of 

valuation, the appraiser sketches the home and placed the story height as a 1 story with 

a finished attic. The home has windows on three sides. Typically, a home that has 

windows in the front and sides of the home has a finished second floor. The property 

owner did not file a tax return or an appeal on this parcel. After the appeal time had 

passed the property owner supplied photos of the home and the square footage was 

correct for the 2022 tax year.  

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Property owner is requesting the square footage of the home. The adjusted 

square footage of the home would be 2,697 from 3,866. 

 Property owner did not file a Tax Return or an Appeal 

 Square Footage has been adjusted for the 2022 tax year  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Deny request to adjust the square footage of the home. 

2. Approve the request to change the square footage of the home from 3,866 to 

2,697 and adjust the fire charge to reflect the new square footage.   

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

 

Other Alternatives: 2 

 

Department Review: Tax Assessor, County Commissioners 

Attachments:  

1. Property Record Cards  

2. Photo 

 

20

Item XII. 1.



21

Item XII. 1.



22

Item XII. 1.



04180028A00  2021 Effingham County Board of Assessors 12/21/2021 1:53:43 PM
Acct #  27650
jkeyes

Owner Information General Property Information Values

INMAN REX W SR AND SUSAN G   
2761 NOEL C CONAWAY RD                  
                                        
                                        
GUYTON, GA 31312     

SITUS 2761   NOEL C CONAWAY RD     

LEGAL 1.59 AC TRCT 3B (OUT 418-28)                 

Tax District 01-County      
               

GMD 9TH Homestead S0   

Total Acres 1.59 LL     No Covenant 0

Zoning AR-2        LD    Acc/Des 1C -  
26.420805

Unit     Return Value 0

Imp Val 407,215

Acc Val 9,583

Land Val 42,009

Total Value 458,807

 2020 : 41,185  2019 : 27,457

 2018 : 38,872  2017 : 38,872

 -  1.00  -  1.00  -  1.00  -  1.00  -  1.00  -  1.00  -  1.00 04180: LAND: 00000 / 
BLDG: 00000 -  1.00

SALES INFORMATION

Grantee Grantor Date Deed Book Plat Book Saleprice CS Mkt Value Reason

INMAN REX W SR AND SUSAN G        
      

MUELLER CRAIG A AND JOANNE D   
         

09/11/2019  2545  343   D64   C1 62,000 R4 0 LM

MUELLER CRAIG A & JOANNE D         
     

BLACKBURN H JASPR                       06/10/2011  2019  405     D 64C1 40,000 R4 0 A 

LAND INFORMATION

CS Land Use Productivity ACRES Unit Value UnAdj Value

R4 Small Parcels  1 1.59 1,000 1,590

ACCESSORY IMPROVEMENTS - 04180028A00

CS Descrip Dim1 Dim2 Units Year Grade Depr Ovr D Pcom Func Econ Neigh IDnits Value Photo ?

R9 FIRE CHARGE-RES 1 AND 2 STY   0 0 1 2020 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 3866.0
0

0 False

R1 FIRE FEE-RES                  0 0 1 2021 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 False

R1 HOME SITE AVG                 0 0 1 2021 1.00 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 9583 False

R1 SANITATION - REGULAR          0 0 0 2020 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 False

Page  1 of  204180028A00 Review: 3/30/2021 by NEAL GROOVER/EHUFF

23

Item XII. 1.



RES IMP - 04180028A00 | 2761   NOEL C CONAWAY RD

Impr Key 27691 Roof Shape GABLE/HIP                 
    

Basement / 
Attic

Squarefoot Phy Depr 1.00

Class / Strat R1 Floor Construction Concrete on Ground   
         

Bsmt / Finish 0 / 0.00 Phy OVR 0.00

Occupancy / Style One Family                    Floor Finish Carpet\Tile                   Attic / Finish 0 / 0.00 Func Obsol 1.00

Rooms 0 Interior Wall Sheetrock                    
 

Bsmt Qual Econ Obsol 1.00

Bedrooms 3 Interior Ceiling Sheetrock                    
 

Attic Qual % Complete 1.00

Heated Area 3,866 Heat Cent Heat / AC            
    

Grade 1.40 Neigh Adj 1.00

Story Height 1 STORY FINISHED 
ATTIC        

Plumbing:Std Comp 1 Year Built 2021 CD 1.00

Foundation Slab Perimeter                Plumbing: Extra Fix 8 Eff Year Built 2022 FMV 407,215

Exterior Wall Hardie Board                  Full Baths 2 Condition Average MAV 0

Roofing Fiberglass Panels            
 

Half Baths 1 RCN 407,215 OVR FMV 0

Sketch Legend Other Features

Code Type Area

R04 04 Garage           756

01.1 1 Sty with Fin Attic 2697

R01 01 Open Porch       231

R01 01 Open Porch       316

R15 15 Add/ Garage      360

Page  2 of  204180028A00 Review: 3/30/2021 by NEAL GROOVER/EHUFF

24

Item XII. 1.



25

Item XII. 1.



26

Item XII. 1.



27

Item XII. 1.



28

Item XII. 1.



Staff Report 
 
Subject:  Renewal of Brokerage/Consulting Agreement with USI Insurance Agency 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Assistant Human Resources Director 
Department:  Human Resources 
Meeting Date:  January 18, 2022 
Item Description: Renewal of Brokerage/Consulting Agreement with USI Insurance 
Agency 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of renewing the Brokerage/Consulting Agreement with USI 
Insurance Agency for two one year periods at the end of the current agreement 
12/31/2022. 
 
Executive Summary 
In March 2017 the County sent out an RFP for an agency to become the County’s 
Agent of Record.  The duties included providing information that would allow the County 
to make informed choices of benefits for our employees. USI Insurance Agency quoted 
a cost of $45,000. USI has stated the annual cost of $45,000 would remain the same. A 
change requested by USI would allow USI to receive a commission on any worksite 
products should we change providers. The commission would not impact the cost of the 
benefits to the County. The agreement was reviewed and approved as true to form by 
the County Attorney  
 
Background 

 USI Insurance Agency was selected based on services that would be provided, 
past experience with USI. 

 The level of service that USI has provided to the County is outstanding.  All 
requests are acted on immediately and USI truly serves as an advocate for the 
County in all benefits making sure we get the most for our money. USI 
successfully lead the conversion from fully self insured to partially self insured. 

 At this time USI receives no commission from the worksite products we offer our 
employees. 

 
Alternatives 
1.  Recommend approval of the renewal of the Brokerage/Consulting Agreement with 
USI Insurance Agency for two one year periods to begin effective January 1, 2023 and 
ending December 31, 2024. Our cost would remain the same, $45,000 per year. 
 
Other Alternatives: 
Issue RFP for Broker/Consulting Agency 
 
Department Review:  Finance, County Manager 
 
Funding Source:  Funding would be continued in the next two fiscal years at the 
current cost of $45,000. 
 
Attachments:  Brokerage/Consulting Agreement with USI Insurance Agency 

29

Item XII. 2.



USl Insurance Services, LLC

Amendment No. 1 to Client Service Agreement

Employee Benefits

This amends the Client Service Agreement ("Agreement") executed by USl Insurance Services, LLC

("USl"), and Effingham County Board of Commissioners ("Client") and made effective as of January 2018

and records their agreement to the following changes in this Amendment No. 1 made effective as of

January 1, 2021:

1. LINES OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

No change

2. SERVICES

No Change

3. COMPENSATION

No Change ($45,000 annually)

4. TERM AND TERMINATION

The Agreement shall be renewed foran additional two years as of January 1, 2021 and shall

terminate as of December 31, 2022.

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands on the date and year first above

written for the purpose set forth in the Amendment No. 1:

USl Insurance Services LLC Effingham County Board of Commissioners

Signature Signature

Wesley Corbitt

Print Name Print Name

Chairman. Effingham Countv Board of

Title Commissioners

Title

loiaa
Date ' '

Date

30

Item XII. 2.

brenda.sandonato
Typewritten text
Brian McNulty

brenda.sandonato
Typewritten text
SE Regional Benefit Practice Leader

brenda.sandonato
Typewritten text
11/4/2020



Staff Report 
 
Subject:    FY 2022 Budget Amendment  
Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 
Department:  Finance Department 
Meeting Date: 1/18/22  
Item Description: Consideration to approve an amendment to the FY 2021-2022 

Budget. 
 
Summary Recommendation:   
Staff is requesting approval of an amendment to the FY 2021-2022 Budget. 
 
Executive Summary: 
Each year the Board of Commissioners proposes a tentative budget. During the year, 
the Board receives requests from agencies and department heads to adjust the budget. 
Additionally, other factors, such as revenue, may fluctuate thereby allowing the Board to 
direct that additional expenditures be made. Therefore, a formal budget resolution 
incorporating these factors is made to adjust the budget accordingly.  
 
Background: 
Georgia Law 6-81-3. Requires the establishment of fiscal year; requirement of annual 
balanced budget; adoption of budget ordinances or resolutions generally; budget 
amendments; uniform chart of accounts. Section (b)(1) notes that each unit of local 
government shall adopt and operate under an annual balanced budget for the general 
fund, each special revenue fund, and each debt service fund in use by the local 
government. The annual balanced budget shall be adopted by ordinance or resolution 
and administered in accordance with this article. 
 
  
The budget amendment attached reflects the following changes: 

1. Changes to copy machines contract  
2. Admin building budget carry over from FY 2021, change orders, furniture 

& fixtures 
3. LMIG 2022 road projects funding and County match 
4. McCall Park change order #3 
5. Director of Development Services position 

 
 
Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the Resolution to amend the budget for FY 2021-2022.  
2. Provide Staff with Direction 

 
 

31

Item XII. 3.



Recommended Alternative: 
Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the Resolution to amend the budget 
for FY 2021-2022. 
 
Other Alternatives: N/A  
 
Department Review: Finance 
 
Funding Source: 
Multiple, in resolution 
 
Attachments: 
FY 2021-2022 Budget Amendment Resolution 

32

Item XII. 3.



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
           Resolution# ____________ 

 
State of Georgia 
County of Effingham 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FY2021-2022 BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the FY 2021-2022 budget of Effingham County was adopted on June 15th, 2021 
and; WHEREAS, it is necessary to further amend said budget to reflect desired changes and; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the County Effingham, 
Georgia that the following amendment be made: 
 

 
 
 
The amendment affects multiple departments.  It reflects revenue awarded for multiple grants, capital project 
change orders, approved software and communications contracts, the Georgia Forestry Commission stipend, 
and the purchase of additional water meters.  This amendment is an overall increase to the budget. 
 
 Approved this _____ day of ___________   2022. 
 
Attest: 
 
 
                                          
Stephanie D.  Johnson, County Clerk   Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairman  

DEPT DEPT NAME ACCT NAME ACCT NO. AMOUNT DESCRIPTION
011 COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OPERATING LEASES/RENTAL COPIER 100‐1130‐011‐52‐2321 3600.00 to allocate funding for copy machine change

011 COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SALES TAX (LOCAL) 100‐31‐3100 ‐3600.00 to allocate sales tax revenue for copy machine

014 HUMAN RESOURCES OPERATING LEASES/RENTAL COPIER 100‐1540‐014‐52‐2321 750.00 to allocate funding for copy machine change

014 HUMAN RESOURCES SALES TAX (LOCAL) 100‐31‐3100 ‐750.00 to allocate sales tax revenue for copy machine

021 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING PROJECT100‐1565‐021‐54‐1306 485000.00 to allocate change orders, furniture, & carry over prior year

021 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE CASH CARRY FORWARD 100‐38‐9015 ‐485000.00 to allocate sales tax revenue for admin building

037 SPLOST ROADS LMIG 2022 ROAD PROJECTS 321‐4207‐037‐54‐2527 1284932.38 to allocate LMIG funding for LMIG 2022 projects

037 SPLOST ROADS DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 321‐33‐4217 ‐988409.52 to allocate LMIG revenue from GDOT

037 SPLOST ROADS SPLOST 321‐31‐3205 ‐296522.86 to allocate SPLOST revenue for LMIG matching funds

039 SPLOST RECREATION MCCALL PARK 321‐6130‐039‐54‐1252 36000.00 to allocate funding for Change Order #3

039 SPLOST RECREATION SPLOST 321‐31‐3205 ‐36000.00 to allocate SPLOST revenue for McCall Park change order

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES SALARIES 272‐7401‐024‐51‐1100‐1 41000.00 to allocate funds for Dev Srvcs Director for six months

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES MEDICAL/LIFE INSURANCE 272‐7401‐024‐51‐2101‐1 162.48 to allocate funds for Dev Srvcs Director for six months

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES HEALTH INSURANCE 272‐7401‐024‐51‐2102‐1 12629.76 to allocate funds for Dev Srvcs Director for six months

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES PAYROLL TAXES 272‐7401‐024‐51‐2200‐1 3136.50 to allocate funds for Dev Srvcs Director for six months

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES RETIREMENT 272‐7401‐024‐51‐2401‐1 2460.00 to allocate funds for Dev Srvcs Director for six months

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES UNEMPLOYMENT 272‐7401‐024‐51‐2600‐1 35.15 to allocate funds for Dev Srvcs Director for six months

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION 272‐7401‐024‐51‐2700‐1 127.10 to allocate funds for Dev Srvcs Director for six months

272 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BUILDING PERMITS 272‐32‐3100 ‐59550.99 to allocate permit revenues for new position

0.00 net entries

33

Item XII. 3.



Staff Report 

 
Subject: Request to accept a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Award 

Author:  Clint Hodges, Fire Chief & EMA Director 

Department:  20-EMA 

Meeting Date: 01/18/2022 

Item Description: Consideration to accept a HMGP Award 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approving to accept a Hazard Mitigation 

Grant Program Award from GEMA/FEMA to update the Effingham County Joint Hazard 

Mitigation Plan 

 

Executive Summary/Background: In order to remain eligible for grants and disaster 

reimbursement from FEMA, each County, to include its municipalities, are required to maintain 

an up to date Hazard Mitigation Plan.  

While most plans are written and updated by staff, due to the complexities and requirements 

placed upon the Hazard Mitigation Plan, FEMA and GEMA award each county with funding, every 

5 years, to have a plan writer facilitate update meetings and plan construction. 

As Effingham County’s current plan was approved in 2017 and is effective through 2022, it is time 

to update then plan. 

The overall grant total is $26,000, with a local match of $6,500, which will be accomplished via 

labor costs of several staff and local community partners to update the plan. 

 

Options/Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

 

Recommended: Staff recommends approving the HMPG funding. 

 

Other Alternative(s): Deny  

 

Department Review: EMA, Finance 

 

Funding Source: Local Labor Match of $6,500 

 

Attachments: GEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Award Document 

34

Item XII. 4.



35

Item XII. 4.



36

Item XII. 4.



37

Item XII. 4.



38

Item XII. 4.



39

Item XII. 4.



40

Item XII. 4.



41

Item XII. 4.



42

Item XII. 4.



43

Item XII. 4.



44

Item XII. 4.



45

Item XII. 4.



46

Item XII. 4.



47

Item XII. 4.



48

Item XII. 4.



49

Item XII. 4.



50

Item XII. 4.



51

Item XII. 4.



52

Item XII. 4.



53

Item XII. 4.



54

Item XII. 4.



55

Item XII. 4.



56

Item XII. 4.



57

Item XII. 4.



58

Item XII. 4.



59

Item XII. 4.



60

Item XII. 4.



61

Item XII. 4.



62

Item XII. 4.



63

Item XII. 4.



64

Item XII. 4.



65

Item XII. 4.



66

Item XII. 4.



67

Item XII. 4.



68

Item XII. 4.



69

Item XII. 4.



70

Item XII. 4.



71

Item XII. 4.



72

Item XII. 4.



73

Item XII. 4.



74

Item XII. 4.



75

Item XII. 4.



76

Item XII. 4.



77

Item XII. 4.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Quote from SealMaster for the purchase of an Aggregate Chip Spreader 

and Spray Bar for the Public Works Department 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Quote from SealMaster for the purchase of an Aggregate Chip 

Spreader and Spray Bar 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the quote from SealMaster for the 

Aggregate Chip Spreader and additional attachments for the total price of $30,103.73. 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The aggregate chip spreader the County currently owns is no longer operational. Public 

Works has been making repairs to the machine as much as possible, but a majority of 

the parts need to be replaced in order to continue operations. To rebuild the current 

machine would cost approximately $12,000.  

 Staff posted an RFQ on December 8, 2021 requesting quotes for a new aggregate chip 

spreader with additional attachments, with a bid opening scheduled for January 5, 2022. 

20 vendors were contacted through the County website and Vendor Registry, and 93 

vendors were contacted through the GaDOAS website. No submittals were received 

through the RFQ process.  

 The current chip spreader was purchased from SealMaster. The sales representative 

staff contacted regarding this RFQ is no longer with the company, so they didn’t see the 

information until the RFQ deadline had passed. They did submit a quote in the amount 

of $30,103.73.  

 This machine is utilized by Public Works for ash road repairs. There is a long list of 

roads needing repairs that would be cost prohibitive to contract out.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Quote from SealMaster for the purchase of an Aggregate Chip Spreader and 

additional attachments in the amount of $30,103.73 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Finance, Purchasing, Public Works (EOM staff) 

Funding Source: SPLOST, a budget amendment may be necessary later in fiscal year 

Attachments: 

1. PO 22-25-005 for the Aggregate Chip Spreader and attachments 

 

 

 

 

78

Item XII. 5.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

VENDOR SHIP TO

SealMaster/GemSeal Effingham County Board of Commissioners

535 Frederick Court SouthWest 804 S.Laurel Street

Atlanta, GA. 30336 Springfield, GA 31329

ATTN : Alison Bruton

Joseph@Sealmasteralabama.com 912-754-2159

(404)505-8888/(334)235-1785

ITEM # QTY

1

1

1

2

1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

  

SealMaster/GemSeal - SIGNATURE TITLE

  

SealMaster/GemSeal - PRINT NAME DATE

 

  

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

 

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

10' Chip Spreader Box

Chip Spreader Operator Platform

24" Block Off Plates

12" Block Off Plates

1/18/2022

RFQ 22-25-005

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC  

TOTAL

$26,324.22

$1,499.51

$150.00

$165.00

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

UNIT PRICE

$26,324.22

$1,499.51

$150.00

$330.00

Freight $1,800.00

 

$1,800.00

TAX RATE

$30,103.73

-$                 

SUBTOTAL

 

 

WESLEY CORBITT

-$                 

-$                 

-$                 

SealMaster/GemSeal agrees to furnish one (1) aggregate chip spreader and attachments as described in the County’s  RFQ 22-25-

005 and related addendums.  The County references  the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the County’s RFQ 22-

25-005 and related addendums as superseding any and all other contracts, Purchase Orders or Agreements. 

CHAIRMAN

30,103.73$     

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

79

Item XII. 5.

mailto:Joseph@Sealmasteralabama.com


DATE:

Atlanta:(404)505-8888 Expiration: 30 Days

Cellphone: (334)235-1785

TO: ATTN:

ADDRESS: TITLE:

CELL:

OFFICE:

EMAIL: EMAIL:

SALESPERSON JOB
SHIPPING 
METHOD

SHIPPING 
TERMS

DUE DATE

Joseph GOVERNMENT LTL FOB Atlanta

QTY ITEM # UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT LINE TOTAL

1.00 E2330  $          26,324.22  $       26,324.22 

1.00 PE2380               1,499.51            1,499.51 

1.00 PE2470                  150.00               150.00 

2.00 PE2480                  165.00               330.00 

1.00 3180               1,800.00            1,800.00 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

TOTAL DISCOUNT

SUBTOTAL 30,103.73$    

SALES TAX

TOTAL 30,103.73$  

PAYMENT 
TERMS

NET 30 DAYS

DESCRIPTION

10' CHIP SPREADER BOX

CHIP SPREADER OPERATOR PLATFORM

January 10, 2022

TAX EXEMPT QUOTE
535 Frederick Court SouthWest

Birmingham: (205)591-9779

Joseph@sealmasteralabama.com

Atlanta, Ga 30336

24" BLOCK OFF PLATES

FREIGHT

12" BLOCK OFF PLATES

THIS CUSTOMER IS TAX EXEMPT.(IF NOT ON FILE PLEASE PROVIDE BELOW)

MUST FILL OUT SINGLE PAGE MUNICIPALITY FORM AND RETURN TO EMAIL LISTED ABOVE.

MUST PROVIDE COPY OF TAX EXEMPT FORM WHEN RETURNING MUNICIPALITY FORM

abruton@effinghamcounty.org

EFFINGHAM COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
480 EDSEL DRIVE STE 100

RICHMOND HILL, GA 31324

CLYDE DYSON

DIRECTOR OF FIELD OPERATIONS

1-912-445--1890

cdyson@eomworx.com

SealMaster/GemSeal
Your one stop shop

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

Quotation prepared by:  Joseph Moore
This is a quotation on the goods named, subject to the conditions noted below: 

To accept this quotation, sign here and return:  _______________________________________________

80

Item XII. 5.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order 1 for Marsh Construction for the Civil/Site Work of 

Fire Station #15 located on Hodgeville Road 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Fire Department 

Meeting Date: January 4, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Change Order 1 for Marsh Construction 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Change Order 1 for 

Marsh Construction to allow for a time extension of 198 days, bringing the construction 

end date to July 15, 2022.  

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Marsh Construction has requested a time extension be granted for the civil/site 

work for Fire Station #15 on Hodgeville Road due to delays resulting from 

adverse weather conditions, delays, and circumstances due to the COVID-19 

pandemic and scheduling conflicts with Savannah Construction and Preservation 

regarding the construction of the building.  

 This extension will begin December 30, 2021 and continue through July 15, 

2022.  

 This request has been reviewed by staff and DPR Architecture.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Change Order 1 for Marsh Construction allowing for a time extension 

of 198 days for the Civil/Site Work of Fire Station #15 on Hodgeville Road 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Asst. County Manager, Project Manager, Purchasing 

Funding Source: NA 

Attachments: 

1. Change Order 1 for Marsh Construction 

2. Time extension request from Marsh Construction 

 

 

 

 

81

Item XII. 6.



Change Order # 1

 
 

Project: ITB 21-55-001A - Civil/Site Work for Hodgeville Fire Station #15 

Contract Date: October 6, 2020 

Change Order Effective Date: December 29, 2021 

Change Order Issued to: Marsh Construction 

    PO Box 372 

    Statesboro, Georgia 30459 

 
You are directed to make the following changes to this Contract. 

 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT

S 

BID 

QTY 

Unit Price Total 

1 Time Extension  days 198 NA 198 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
The original Contract Sum was............................................................................$ 215,097.34 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders....................................$ 0.00 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was...........................................$ 215,097.34 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order............................$ 0.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be..........................$ 215,097.34 

The Contract Time will be increased by 198 days 

The Date allowed for completion is therefore July 15, 2022 

 

Owner       Contractor 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners  Marsh Construction 

804 S. Laurel Street     PO Box 372 

Springfield, GA 31329     Statesboro, GA 30459 

 

 

By: ______________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: ___________________________________  Date: ______________________________ 

82

Item XII. 6.



December 27, 2021 ITB No. 21-55-001A  A NEW FIRE STATION No 15 CIVIL/SITE WORK HODGEVILLE ROAD   1430 
HR                                                                                                                                              

  

Marsh Construction Services, LLC 
8534 Stilson Leefield Rd. Statesboro, GA 30461                 

Timmy Marsh 912-682-9902 ~ Travis Marsh 912-682-8678     
Jason Dunn 912-663-1365              

tmarshconstructionservices@gmail.com                            
dunnamax@outlook.com    

  
Good afternoon, 
This letter is to formally request an extension of time as the County deems acceptable on the project known 
as; “ITB No. 21-55-001A  A NEW FIRE STATION No 15 CIVIL/SITE WORK HODGEVILLE ROAD”, contracted 
between Effingham County and Marsh Construction Services, LLC, 
 
The request is being made to delays resulting from adverse weather conditions, delays, and circumstances 
due to The COVID-19 Pandemic and the schedule of the Contractor erecting the Fire House structure. 
 
Please let me know what is deemed an acceptable duration for the time extension. I want to thank you for 
your time and consideration. Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
Jason R. Dunn 
 

  

  

  

83

Item XII. 6.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order 1 for Savannah Construction and Preservation, 

LLC for the construction of Fire Station #15 located on Hodgeville Road 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Fire Department 

Meeting Date: January 4, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Change Order 1 for Savannah Construction and 

Preservation, LLC 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Change Order 1 for 

Savannah Construction and Preservation, LLC to allow for a time extension of 198 

days, bringing the construction end date to July 15, 2022.  

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Savannah Construction and Preservation, LLC has requested a time extension 

be granted for the construction of Fire Station #15 on Hodgeville Road due to 

delays resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic causing a shortage of materials 

bring produced, and scheduling conflicts with Marsh Construction regarding the 

civil/site work on the site.  

 This extension will begin December 30, 2021 and continue through July 15, 

2022.  

 This request has been reviewed by County staff and DPR Architecture.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Change Order 1 for Savannah Construction and Preservation, LLC 

allowing for a time extension of 198 days for the construction of Fire Station #15 

on Hodgeville Road 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Asst. County Manager, Project Manager, Purchasing 

Funding Source: NA 

Attachments: 

1. Change Order 1 for Savannah Construction and Preservation, LLC  

2. Time extension request from Savannah Construction and Preservation, LLC 

 

 

 

 

84

Item XII. 7.



Change Order # 1

 
 

Project: ITB 21-55-001B – Construction of Hodgeville Fire Station #15 

Contract Date: October 6, 2020 

Change Order Effective Date: December 29, 2021 

Change Order Issued to: Savannah Construction and Preservation, LLC 

    200 Blue Fin Circle, Suite 3 

    Savannah, GA 31410 

 
You are directed to make the following changes to this Contract. 

 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT

S 

BID 

QTY 

Unit Price Total 

1 Time Extension  days 198 NA 198 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
The original Contract Sum was............................................................................$ 472,019.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders....................................$ 0.00 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was...........................................$ 472,019.00 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order............................$ 0.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be..........................$ 472,019.00 

The Contract Time will be increased by 198 days 

The Date allowed for completion is therefore July 15, 2022 

 

Owner       Contractor 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners  Savannah Construction and Preservation, LLC 

804 S. Laurel Street     200 Blue Fin Circle, Suite 3 

Springfield, GA 31329     Savannah, GA 31410 

 

 

By: ______________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: ___________________________________  Date: ______________________________ 

85

Item XII. 7.



Savannah Construction & Preservation | 200 Blue Fin Circle, Suite 3 | Savannah, GA 31401 | 912-790-7356  

100 Bull Street, Suite 2 | Savannah, GA 31401 

savannah-construction.com 
 

     

 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Frank D'Arcangelo           March 31, 2021 

DPR Architecture 

12 East Grady Street 

Statesboro, GA 30458 

 

 

Project: EFFINGHAM FIRE STATION #15, HODGEVILLE ROAD, SPRINGFIELD, GEORGIA  

  SC&P Explanation of requested Change Order 1 

 

 

Frank,  

 

 Unfortunately due to circumstances far beyond our control we have been notified by our metal building supplier that we 

have incurred a delay of the Metal Building for the Fire Station #15. We originally signed the contract with the vendor and paid the 

required deposit, which ensure the building by the end of April or early May. However, as of late last week we received news from 

our vendor that now due to Covid-19 there is a shortage of materials currently being produced. To exacerbate these issues the 

Metal Building Manufacturer is located in Texas causing further delays. Because of these reasons the building manufacturer has 

requested a change order for the change in price due to these shortages and delays. Both the price has increased and the time to 

receive the building has been extended. The new projected timeline for the metal building is now end of June or first of July. These 

building delays have now also caused an equipment conflict necessary for the building erection, which is also accommodated for in 

the current change order request.  

 We would respectfully like to request a change order to accommodate for the unforeseen issues surrounding the metal 

building, which is directly related to our current economy and market trends and completely out of our control. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Eric Davenport 
 

 
 

CFO | Sr. Project Manger | Estimator  

Savannah Construction & Preservation, LLC. 
200 Blue Fin Circle, Suite 3, Savannah, GA 31410 

C: 910-373-8734 | eric@savannah-construction.com  

86

Item XII. 7.



Staff Report 

 

Subject:  Final Plat Approval 

Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning & Zoning Manager 

Department:  Development Services 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 

Item Description: Toss Allen, for Pine Hill Group, LLC, requests approval of the final plat for 

Rain Dance, ph 2. 

 

Summary Recommendation:  

Staff have reviewed the final plat, and inspected the roads and stormwater infrastructure 

identified in the warranty deed, and recommend approval. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 Pine Hill Group, LLC’s contractors have built roads and stormwater infrastructure for 

phase 2. In order to sell the 40 lots of phase 2 for home construction, the final plat must 

be approved, and the roads and stormwater infrastructure accepted by the Board of 

Commissioners.  

 Water and sewer is provided by the City of Springfield. An infrastructure agreement that 

confirms City of Springfield ownership of the water and sewer infrastructure that is 

located in the right of way is included in this final plat approval. 

 EOM inspected the right of way and stormwater infrastructure of phase 2, and 
recommend approval. 

 Development Services staff reviewed the final plat and checklist. All documents are in 
order, and consistent with zoning, plans, and plats approved previously. 

 The County Engineer reviewed the bond recommendation, and approved the bond for 

$34,544.20, which is 10% of the total cost of drainage and paving in phase 2. The 

applicant has submitted an infrastructure bond to the City of Springfield. 

 The County Attorney reviewed and approved the warranty deed, infrastructure 

agreement, and utility easement agreement. The utility easement agreement is between 

the developer and the city, and is referenced in the Warranty Deed. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1 - Approve the final plat and infrastructure agreement for Rain Dance ph 2, and accept the 

roads and stormwater infrastructure identified in the warranty deed  

2 – Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1  Other Alternatives: N/A 

Department Review: Development Services; EOM; County Attorney 

Funding Source: No new funding requested. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Final Plat for Rain Dance, Ph 2  4. Bond 
2. Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist 5. Infrastructure Agreement 
3. Warranty Deed 

87

Item XII. 8.



01-04-2022

01-07-2022

01-07-2022

01-07-2022

01-07-2022

01-04-2022

88

Item XII. 8.



89

Item XII. 8.



90

Item XII. 8.



91

Item XII. 8.



92

Item XII. 8.



93

Item XII. 8.



94

Item XII. 8.



95

Item XII. 8.



96

Item XII. 8.



97

Item XII. 8.



98

Item XII. 8.



99

Item XII. 8.



100

Item XII. 8.



Staff Report 

 

Subject:  Final Plat Approval 

Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning & Zoning Manager 

Department:  Development Services 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 

Item Description: Clay Price for Simcoe Investment Group, LLC, requests approval of the 

final plat for Emerald Plantation ph 3 

 

Summary Recommendation:  

Staff have reviewed the final plat, and inspected the roads, water, and stormwater infrastructure 

identified in the warranty deed, and recommend approval. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 Simcoe Investments Group’s contractors have built roads, water, and stormwater 

infrastructure for phase 3. In order to sell the 16 lots of phase 3 for home construction, 

the final plat must be approved, and the roads, water and stormwater infrastructure 

accepted by the Board of Commissioners. 

 Sidewalks are specifically excluded from the property conveyed in the deed; ownership 

of the sidewalks is assigned to the HOA on the final plat. 

 EOM & the County Engineer inspected the right of way and all public utilities located 
within the right of way of phase 3, and recommend approval. 

 Staff reviewed the final plat and checklist. All documents are in order, and consistent 
with zoning, plans, and plats approved previously. 

 The County Engineer reviewed the bond recommendation, and approved the bond for 

$20,054, which is 10% of the total cost of water distribution and storm drainage 

infrastructure and paving in phase 3.  

 The County Attorney reviewed and approved the warranty deed. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1 - Approve the final plat for Emerald Plantation ph 3, a and accept the roads, water, and 

stormwater infrastructure identified in the warranty deed. 

2 – Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1  Other Alternatives: N/A 

 

Department Review: Development Services; EOM; County Attorney 

Funding Source: No new funding requested. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Final Plat for Emerald Plantation, ph 3 3. Bond 
2. Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist 4. Warranty Deed for infrastructure 

101

Item XII. 9.



102

Item XII. 9.



103

Item XII. 9.



104

Item XII. 9.



105

Item XII. 9.



106

Item XII. 9.



107

Item XII. 9.



108

Item XII. 9.



109

Item XII. 9.



110

Item XII. 9.



111

Item XII. 9.



112

Item XII. 9.



Staff Report 

 

Subject:  Final Plat Approval 

Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning & Zoning Manager 

Department:  Development Services 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 

Item Description: Richard Flanders, of New Horizon Development, requests approval of the 

final plat for Buckingham Plantation, ph 2B 

 

Summary Recommendation:  

Staff have reviewed the final plat, and inspected the roads, water, sewer, and stormwater 

infrastructure identified in the warranty deed, and recommend approval. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 New Horizon Development contractors have built roads, water, sewer, and stormwater 

infrastructure for phase 2B. In order to sell the 51 lots of phase 2B for home 

construction, the final plat must be approved, and the roads, water, sewer and 

stormwater infrastructure accepted by the Board of Commissioners. 

 Sidewalks are specifically excluded from the property conveyed in the deed. 

 EOM inspected the right of way and all public utilities located within the right of way of 
phase 2B, and recommend approval. 

 Staff reviewed the final plat and checklist. All documents are in order, and consistent 
with zoning, plans, and plats approved previously. 

 The County Engineer reviewed the bond recommendation, and approved the bond for 

$85,564,67 which is 10% of the total cost of water, sewer, and storm drainage 

infrastructure and paving in phase 2B.  

 The County Attorney reviewed and approved the warranty deed. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1 - Approve the final plat for Buckingham Plantation, ph 2B, and accept the roads, water, sewer, 

and stormwater infrastructure identified in the warranty deed. 

2 – Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1  Other Alternatives: N/A 

 

Department Review: Development Services; EOM; County Attorney 

Funding Source: No new funding requested. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Final Plat for Buckingham Plantation, ph 2B  3. Bond 
2. Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist  4. Warranty Deed 

113

Item XII. 10.



114

Item XII. 10.



115

Item XII. 10.



116

Item XII. 10.



117

Item XII. 10.



118

Item XII. 10.



119

Item XII. 10.



120

Item XII. 10.



121

Item XII. 10.



122

Item XII. 10.



123

Item XII. 10.



124

Item XII. 10.



125

Item XII. 10.



Staff Report 

 

Subject:  Final Plat Approval 

Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning & Zoning Manager 

Department:  Development Services 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 

Item Description: Heather Arnold requests approval of the revised Goshen Hills Farms 

major subdivision final plat. 

 

Summary Recommendation:  

Staff have reviewed the final plat, and recommend approval of the Goshen Hills Farms revised 

major subdivision final plat. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 The 4.5 acres include three lots rezoned to AR-2 on January 4, 2022. 

 The owner wishes to reconfigure two of the lots in the major subdivision. Therefore, the 

plat must be approved by the Board of Commissioners. 

 All lots have public road frontage. 

 Staff reviewed the final plat and checklist. All documents are in order, and consistent 
with zoning, plans, and plats approved previously. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1 – Approve the revised Goshen Hills Farms major subdivision final plat. 

2 – Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1 

 

Other Alternatives: N/A 

 

Department Review: Development Services 

 

Funding Source: No new funding requested. 

 

Attachments:  1.   Final Plat for Goshen Hills Farms_Arnold lots 

2. Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist 

126

Item XII. 11.



127

Item XII. 11.



128

Item XII. 11.



129

Item XII. 11.



130

Item XII. 11.



Staff Report 

 

Subject:  Water Sewer Masterplan Design – GA EPD Tide Study assistance for 

WLA study of the Ogeechee Run.   

Author:  Eric Larson, Asst. County Manager 

Department:  Public Works 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2022 

Item Description: Approve a task order to provide consultant services to collect data on tide 

cycles along the Ogeechee Run and Little Ogeechee River to assist GA-

EPD with the Waste Load Allocation (WLA) determine of the Ogeechee 

Run. 

 

Summary Recommendation:  

This proposal is for Alliance Consulting Engineers with a tide study for the Little Ogeechee River. 

This study is a prerequisite to a model study to evaluate a potential new wastewater discharge to 

Ogeechee Run in Effingham County, GA. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 Alliance Consulting Engineers was selected for Indefinite Delivery Contract (IDC) in 

February 2021. 

 In May 2021, Alliance was selected to perform the water and sewer masterplan project 

to study our systems and prepare for future growth of the County. 

 Masterplan contract is $195,000 

 The tide study task order is additional work associated with, but not included within, the 

masterplan project.   

 Task Order is $20,000 and include the tide study and coordination with GA-EPD on the 

WLA determination and the surface discharge permit request. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1 - Approve the task order for Alliance Consulting Engineers to provide tide study services to 

assist GA-EPD with the Waste Load Allocation of Ogeechee Run. 

2 – Take no action – Request more information. 

3 - Deny 

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1 

 

Other Alternatives: Alternative 2 

 

Department Review: County Engineer; County Attorney 

 

Funding Source: SPLOST. 

 

Attachments:  1.   Task Order 

131

Item XII. 12.



132

Item XII. 12.



133

Item XII. 12.



134

Item XII. 12.



135

Item XII. 12.



Staff Report 
Subject: Ratification of Approval of the Change Order #3 for APAC-Atlantic, Inc. for the 

Blue Jay/McCall Road Intersection Improvements 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: February 15, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Change Order #3 for APAC-Atlantic, Inc. 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends ratification of approval of Change 

Order #3 to APAC-Atlantic, Inc. for $48,020.00 for the Blue Jay/McCall Intersection 

Improvements. APAC-Atlantic will resurface the road from the new intersection to the 

new right-hand turn lane at McCall Road.   

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 APAC-Atlantic, Inc. was awarded Contract #21-25-002 for the Blue Jay/McCall 

Road Intersection Improvements in May 2021. Change Order #1 was awarded 

September 2021 to remove and replace unsuitable soil and Change Order #2 

was awarded in October 2021 for the construction of a right-hand turn lane at 

McCall Road which added an additional 45 days to the project.  

 Staff has requested this Change Order to resurface the road beginning at the 

new section at the improved intersection and continuing to the new right-hand 

turn lane.  

 The cost for this additional work is $48,020.00 bringing the overall contract total 

to $1,302,633.60  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Ratification of Approval of the Change Order #3 for APAC-Atlantic, Inc. for the 

Blue Jay/McCall Road Intersection Improvements in the amount of $48,020.00 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Purchasing, Asst. County Manager, Project Manager 

Funding Source:  

Attachments: 

1. Change Order #3 

2. Change Order #1 and 2 

 

 

 

136

Item XII. 13.



Change Order #3

 
 

Project: ITB 21-25-002 – Blue Jay Rd. and McCall Rd. Realignment 

Contract Date: May 5, 2021 

Change Order Effective Date: January 7, 2022 

Change Order Issued to: APAC – Atlantic, Inc. 

    47 Telfair Place 

    Savannah, GA 31415 

 
You are directed to make the following changes to this Contract. 

 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNITS BID 

QTY 

Unit Price Total 

1 Pavement Milling  days 2 Lump Sum $32,000.00 

2 Paving days      2 Lump Sum $10,080.00 

3 Striping feet 3600LF $1.20/foot $4,320.00 

4 Railroad Road Markings per 3 $540 EA $1,620.00 

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
The original Contract Sum was............................................................................$ 1,111,588.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders....................................$ 143,025.60 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was...........................................$ 1,254,613.60 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order............................$ 48,020.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be..........................$ 1,302,633.60 

The Contract Time will be increased by _4__ days 

The Time allowed for completion is therefore 249 days 

 

Owner       Contractor 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners  APAC – Atlantic, Inc. 

804 S. Laurel Street     47 Telfair Place 

Springfield, GA 31329     Savannah, GA 31415 

 

 

By: ______________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: ___________________________________  Date: ______________________________ 

137

Item XII. 13.



138

Item XII. 13.



10/19/2021

139

Item XII. 13.



140

Item XII. 13.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:   Resolution Declaring SPLOST Election Results  

Author:  Tim Callanan – County Manager 

Department:  Administration 

Meeting Date: 01/15/2022  

Item Description: Consideration to approve resolution declaring SPLOST election 
results  

 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval of the resolution 
 

Executive Summary: 

In November, Effingham County voters approved the reimplementation of a 1% Special 

Projects Local Option Sales Tax this resolution officially declares that result for the 

purpose of issuing bonds also approved in the referendum.  

 

Background: 

This resolution will officially declare the results of the election  
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the Resolution declaring the SPLOST election.  
2. Provide Staff with Direction 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

3. Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the Resolution declaring the 
SSPLOST election results  

Other Alternatives: N/A  

 

Department Review: County Manager and County Attorney 

 

Funding Source: 

NA 

Attachments: 

SPLOST election result resolution 

141

Item XII. 14.



 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY DECLARING THE RESULTS 

OF AN ELECTION HELD ON NOVEMBER 2, 2021 
AND 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION SUPERINTENDENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County (the “Board of 

Commissioners”), adopted a resolution on September 7, 2021, to reimpose, levy, and collect a 
county one percent special purpose local option sales and use tax (the “Special Sales Tax”) and 
to authorize the issuance of general obligation debt of Effingham County (the “County”), 
conditioned upon approval by a majority of the qualified voters residing within the County 
voting in an election thereon to be held on November 2, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said resolution was delivered to the Chairman of the Board of 
Elections and Registration of Effingham County, as election superintendent for the County (the 
“Election Superintendent”), who issued a call for the election; and 

WHEREAS, the Election Superintendent caused notice of said election to be published in 
the newspaper published in the County in which sheriff’s advertisements for the County are 
published, notifying the qualified voters of the County that on November 2, 2021, an election 
would be held (the “Election”), said notice having been published for the time and in the manner 
and containing the specifications and information required by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Election was held on November 2, 2021, in accordance with said 
resolution, call, and notice, and the several managers of the election brought in the returns from 
the Election as required by law and these officers calling the Election, in the presence of and 
together with the several managers, consolidated the returns and the results thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the consolidated returns found the results of the Election to be as follows:  

1% SPLOST ELECTION 

 

 

YES 2,572 

NO   1,288 

Shall a special one percent sales and use tax be reimposed in the special district of 

Effingham County for a period of time not to exceed six years and for the raising 

of an estimated amount of $80,000,000.00 for the purpose of funding (1) public 

buildings capital outlay projects, recreation capital outlay projects, roads, streets, 

and bridges capital outlay projects, vehicles and equipment capital outlay 

projects, drainage capital outlay projects, technology capital outlay projects and 

water and sewer capital outlay projects for Effingham County; (2) water and 

sewer capital outlay projects, streets and lanes capital outlay projects, public 

safety capital outlay projects and public safety vehicles, and recreation capital 

outlay projects for the City of Guyton; (3) water and sewer capital outlay projects, 

fire capital outlay projects, police capital outlay projects, streets and drainage 

capital outlay projects, recreation capital outlay projects, and public buildings 

capital outlay projects for the City of Rincon; and (4) water and sewer capital 

outlay projects, parks and recreation capital outlay projects, public safety capital 

outlay projects, streets and drainage capital outlay projects and city buildings 

capital outlay projects for the City of Springfield? 

142

Item XII. 14.



 

2 

 

 If reimposition of the tax is approved by the voters, such vote shall also constitute 

approval of the issuance of general obligation debt of Effingham County, Georgia 

in the principal amount of $16,000,000.00 for the purposes of funding all or a 

portion of any of the County-Wide Projects.” 

 

WHEREAS, a copy of the Election Summary Report and Consolidated Returns filed by 

the Election Superintendent with the office of the Secretary of State and the Commissioner of the 

Georgia Department of Revenue is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A; and  

WHEREAS, a majority of the qualified voters of the County voting in the Election voted 

in favor of the question which gives approval for the imposition of the Special Sales Tax and the 

issuance of general obligation debt of the County in the principal amount not to exceed 

$16,000,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND CERTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. To the extent that the Board of Commissioners may be considered as one of the 

officers ordering the Election under the provisions of Official Code of Georgia Annotated § 36-

82-2, or any other provisions of law which may be deemed applicable, the Board of 

Commissioners does hereby declare the results of the Election to be in favor of the question set 

forth above, which constitutes approval of the Special Sales Tax and of the issuance of general 

obligation debt of the County in the principal amount not to exceed $16,000,000. 

2. The consolidated returns of the Election and this resolution shall be entered upon 

the minutes of this meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

3. The Election Superintendent has prepared copies of the consolidated returns and 

certified and filed the same as required by law.  The Election Superintendent has complied with 

all other applicable provisions of the Georgia Election Code. 

4. The issuance of general obligation debt having been duly approved, ratified and 

confirmed, statutory notice to that effect shall be served upon the District Attorney of the 

Ogeechee Judicial Circuit of Georgia, and such notice shall be executed on behalf of the County 

by its Chairman of the Board of Commissioners so that said District Attorney may, as provided 

by law, institute proceedings to have such general obligation debt validated. 

RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED, this January ___, 2022. 

       EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

  

       By:        

Chairman 

Board of Commissioners 
 

143

Item XII. 14.



 

Exhibit A-1 

 

Exhibit A 

 

ELECTION SUMMARY REPORT 

AND CONSOLIDATED RETURNS 

 

 

[Attached.] 

 

 

144

Item XII. 14.



 

 

 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 

 

 The undersigned Clerk of the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County (the “Board 

of Commissioners”), keeper of the records and seal thereof, hereby certifies that the foregoing is 

a true and correct copy of a resolution approved and adopted by majority vote of the Board of 

Commissioners in meeting assembled on ___________, 2022, the original of which resolution 

has been entered in the official records of the Board of Commissioners under my supervision and 

is in my official possession, custody, and control. 

 I further certify that the meeting was held in conformity with the requirements of 

Title 50, Chapter 14 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 

 

 

(S E A L)             

       Clerk 

145

Item XII. 14.



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION SUPERINTENDENT 

 

The undersigned Chairman of the Board of Elections and Registration of Effingham 

County, as Election Superintendent for Effingham County, hereby certifies that a duplicate of the 

foregoing resolution has been entered in the official records of my office and that the returns 

described therein and the result of the election as described therein are true and correct. 

 This _________, 2022. 

 

 

 

              
Chairman 

       Board of Elections and Registration, 
       as Election Superintendent 

 

146

Item XII. 14.



STATE OF GEORGIA   

COUNTY OF EFFINGHAM  

 
 
 

RESOLUTION _________  

EFFINGHAM COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICTS 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY the Effingham County Board of Commissioners at its 

meeting held on _______________________, and pursuant to the lawful 

authority thereof, as follows: 

WHEREAS, there has been a growth and other changes in the population of 

Effingham County, Georgia as determined by the 2020 United States Census 

population counts: 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Effingham County Board of 

Commissioners and the Board of Education election districts be adjusted to comply 

with the requirements of federal law, including the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, 

as amended; 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners and the Board of Education have 

conferred with and received the technical assistance and approval of the Legislative 

and Congressional Reapportionment Office of the General Assembly of the State of 

Georgia in establishing new election districts; 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners and the Board of Education 

conducted a public meeting to receive public input concerning proposed changes to 

the Board of Commissioners and Board of Education election districts; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners 

of Effingham County, requests the introduction of local legislation to implement 

changes to the five election districts as proposed on the map of Effingham County 

(Map Number _____) and as approved by Legislative & Congressional 

Reapportionment Office; and 
147

Item XII. 15.



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk is directed to transmit a 

copy of this Resolution to the General Assembly.  

 

This    day of _____________, 2022. 

        

       

Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairman 

 

       

Forrest Floyd, District 1  

 

      

Roger Burdette, District 2 

 

      

Jamie Deloach, District 3 

 

      

Reginald S. Loper Sr., District 4 

 

      

Phil Kieffer, District 5 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Stephanie D. Johnson, County Clerk  

 

148

Item XII. 15.



149

Item XII. 15.



User: Effingham Co.

Plan Name: EffinghamCCSB-draft1-2022

Plan Type: Local

Population Summary
Friday, January 7, 2022 3:44 PM

Summary Statistics:

Population Range: 12,843 to 13,075

Ratio Range: 0.02

Absolute Range: -111 to 121

Absolute Overall Range: 232

Relative Range: -0.86% to 0.93%

Relative Overall Range: 1.79%

Absolute Mean Deviation: 79.40

Relative Mean Deviation: 0.61%

Standard Deviation: 86.20

District Population Deviation % Devn. [18+_Pop] [% 18+_Pop] [% NH_Wht] [% NH_Blk] [% Hispanic

Origin]

[% NH_Asn] [% NH_Ind] [% NH_Hwn] [% NH_Oth] [% NH_2+

Races]

001 12,843 -111 -0.86% 9,587 74.65% 82.82% 6% 4.91% 0.55% 0.24% 0.02% 0.32% 5.15%

002 12,896 -58 -0.45% 9,229 71.56% 75.57% 11.07% 6.12% 1.98% 0.14% 0.07% 0.31% 4.75%

003 12,924 -30 -0.23% 9,593 74.23% 74.5% 17.15% 3.16% 0.27% 0.41% 0.01% 0.42% 4.08%

004 13,031 77 0.59% 9,396 72.1% 70.96% 16.33% 6.07% 0.32% 0.38% 0.06% 0.55% 5.33%

005 13,075 121 0.93% 9,490 72.58% 68.41% 16.87% 6.67% 2.1% 0.23% 0.06% 0.47% 5.18%

Total: 64,769

Ideal District: 12,954

Page 1 of 1

150

Item XII. 15.



151

Item XII. 15.


	Top
	Item X. 1.	ACCF Form - Authorized Signers for Distribution of Funds
	Signatures for Defined Contribution Authorized Distribution Signer Form
	DC  DB Distribution-Retirement Authorized Signer Form

	Item X. 2.	ACCG Form Schedule F
	Signatures for Schedule F Authorizing Changes to ACCG Defined Contribution Program
	DC Schedule F-Authorized Signer Form #2
	DC Schedule F-Authorized Signer Form

	Item X. 3.	ACCG Authorized Access to Secure Website
	Amendment toACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access
	Secure Web Authorized Users 2-1-2022
	ACCG Retirement Services Secure Web Access Change Form- 2021

	Item X. 4.	MOU with United Methodist Campground - EEMA
	1.  2022 - Staff Report - MOU United Methodist Campground
	2.  EEMA Methodist Campground MOU 2-7-2017

	Item XI. 1.	2nd Reading of Seasons of Japan Variance
	01182022 Presentments_2nd readings_Marchese
	Marchese - Variance - 465N-2

	Item XII. 1.	Refund Request_Rex Inman Sr.
	Staff Report Tax Assessor Tax Refund for Rex Inman Sr
	Refund Request Form
	PHOTO S2
	2021 PRC_General
	PHOTO F
	PHOTO S3
	PHOTO B
	PHOTO S1

	Item XII. 2.	USI Brokerage/Consulting Agreement - Amendment #2
	Renewal of USI Agreement
	Amendment 1 to Client Services Agreement--FULLY EXECUTED

	Item XII. 3.	1/18/22 meeting - FY 2022 budget amendment
	Staff Report FY 2022 Budget Amendment - 1-18-22
	Resolution FY 2022 budget amendments - 1-18-22 meeting

	Item XII. 4.	Hazard Mitigation Plan Grant Award
	HMGP Grant Award Staff Report (01.18.2022) CH
	HMGP Grant Award Document 2022

	Item XII. 5.	Rock Box and Spray Bar
	1. Staff Report for Chip Spreader
	2. PO template

	Item XII. 6.	Marsh Construction CO1
	1. Staff Report Marsh Construction CO1
	2. Change Order 1 - Marsh
	3. SECOND UPDATE for TIME EXTENSION REQUEST LETTER 12-27-2021

	Item XII. 7.	Savannah Construction CO1
	1. Staff Report Savannah Construction CO1
	2. Change Order 1 - Savannah Construction
	3. SC&P CO1 Explanation-signed

	Item XII. 8.	Rain Dance ph 2 final plat approval
	Staff Report Rain Dance ph 2 final plat approval
	1. Raindance ph 2 final plat_signed
	2. Raindance ph 2 Final plat submittal form & checklist
	3. Raindance ph 2 Warranty Deed_signed
	4. Raindance ph 2 Bond_NFB5955504
	5. Raindance ph 2 Infrastructure Agreement

	Item XII. 9.	Emerald Plantation ph 3 Final Plat Approval
	Staff Report Emerald Plantation ph 3 final plat approval
	1. Emerald Plantation Phase III Plat_signed 1-5-22
	2. Emerald Plantation ph 3 Final Plat Submittal Form and Checklist
	3. Emerald Plandation Bond_S2703946
	4. Emerald Plantation ph 3_Warranty Deed_approved

	Item XII. 10.	Buckingham Plantation ph 2B Final Plat Approval
	Staff Report Buckingham Plantation ph 2B final plat approval
	Plat_01072022
	2. Buckingham Plantation 2B_Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist
	3. Buckingham Phase IIB Maintance Bond
	4. Warranty Deed_signed

	Item XII. 11.	Goshen Hills Farms revised final plat approval
	Staff Report Arnold revized major subdivision final plat
	1. Goshen Hills Farms revised final plat_Arnold lots
	2. Arnold - Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist

	Item XII. 12.	Water Sewer Masterplan Design – GA EPD Tide Study assistance for WLA study of the Ogeechee Run
	Staff Report WLA Tide study 01182022
	NTP - Effingham County 21162 (01.04.22)
	little ogeechee location

	Item XII. 13.	2022-063 APAC Change Order
	1. Staff Report - APAC CO3
	2. Change Order 3 - APAC
	3. APAC CO1 and CO2

	Item XII. 14.	2022-064 SPLOST Resolution
	2021 staff report - SPLOST election result resolution
	res-declare (v2) 01-11-22

	Item XII. 15.	2022-066 Redistricting Resolution
	Redistricting Resolution
	EffinghamCCSB-draft1-2022 map overlay
	EffinghamCCSB-draft1-2022 Population Summary
	EffinghamCCSB-draft1-2022 map

	Bottom

